
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, February 25, 2014                                                                       City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Special Study Session Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 25, 2014 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Adopt Resolution Revising Vision, Mission and Goals Statement (Scott) 
C-4. Adopt Resolution Updating Council Rules of Procedure (Scott) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  February 13 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  February 13 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  February 19 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  February 6 and February 20 meetings. 
• Future Meetings: Economic Development Council:  Next meeting February 27. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Public Testimony and Possible Action on Medical Marijuana Moratorium Extension 

Ordinance (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Resolution Rejecting Aquatics Center Roof Bids (Thomas)  
3. Approve City Manager Merit Goals for 2014 (Beaufrere) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 25, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 25, 2014 CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL 

STRATEGIC PLANNING SUMMIT SUMMARY 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the January 25, 2014 City Council Annual 
Strategic Planning Summit Summary. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 41



Unapproved Draft – January 25, 2014 Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary 
Submitted for Approval:  February 25, 2014 
 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL  
ANNUAL STRATEGIC PLANNING SUMMIT  
Saturday, 25 January 2014, 8:10 a.m. — 2:35 p.m.   
Maplewood Golf Club  
 
 

SUMMARY   
OF THE COUNCIL’S MAJOR AGREEMENTS AT THE MEETING 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attending:  Mayor Margaret Harto, Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner, Councilors Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla 
Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey; City Manager Derek Matheson; Management Team members Noreen 
Beaufrere, Richard Hart, Rob Hendrickson, Kevin Klason, Sharon Scott, Karla Slate, Scott Thomas, and Don Vondran; 
facilitator Jim Reid. 
 
Guests:  Sean Smith, Paul Max, Dave Lucavish, and Liz Fast  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
MAJOR AGREEMENTS OF THE SUMMIT  
 
The major agreements of the City Council at its 2014 Summit were: 
 
 
1. Vision, Mission, and Goals:   

 
a. The vision and mission statements were reaffirmed.  Council members commented that the 

City’s new branding will help advance the vision even further.    
 

b. The goal that addresses neighborhoods was changed so that it will now read:  “Neighborhoods:  
Foster community cohesiveness, communication, and cooperation, and maintain neighborhoods 
that offer a variety of housing options that are diverse, safe, accessible, and well-designed.” 

 
 
2. Council Priorities for Spending a Portion of the Fund Balance:   
 

a. The Council agreed to direct Derek and the management team to develop a list of transportation, 
parks and recreation, and Town Center projects that the Council should consider funding with a 
portion of the recovering fund balance.   
 

b. During the discussion, Council members articulated the following interests, which may guide the 
management team in developing the project list: 1) one-time expenditures; 2) promote 
economic development; 3) ensure safety, particularly of kids; 4) benefit more than one of the 
three areas (transportation, parks, Town Center); and 5) set the stage for matching funds from 
other sources, including the federal and state governments.    

 
c. Council members also agreed that a 20-30% fund balance should be preserved. They authorized 

the management team to bring back a variety of spending scenarios, so the exact percentage of 
the fund balance to be reserved will be determined during the next discussion.  

 

2 of 41



 2 

 
3. Council Priorities for Spending a Portion of Future Surpluses:   

 
a. The Council agreed that public safety is a very high priority for spending future budget surpluses. 

More specifically, the Council is interested in working with the Kent School District to fund a 
School Resource Officer (SRO) who would be primarily stationed at Kentwood High School.  The 
Council is also interested in funding an additional officer for the Covington Police Department. 
 

b. The Council reached consensus that the funding of the SRO should be placed on a Council agenda 
as soon as possible, and that the City should immediately inform the Kent School District of the 
City’s interest in working with the District to jointly fund the officer. 

 
c. Council members agreed that the funding of an additional police officer will be one of their 

primary interests in the deliberations about the 2015 City budget.  
 

d. The Council also expressed interest in developing a police department strategic plan in the near-
term future.  The plan the Council envisions would be similar to the City’s transportation and 
parks strategic plans. 

 
 
4. Town Center and the CIP and TIP: 

 
a. The Council agreed that Town Center projects will be a significant part of the City’s Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) and Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) following completion of the 
Town Center Study this spring and when the CIP and TIP are next updated.   

 
 

5. Identifying Additional Revenue Sources: 
 

a. Council agreed to discuss at its 2015 Summit ideas for generating additional revenues such as the 
City establishing its own cable utility or applying the utility tax to the sewer and water districts 
that operate within the City limits. 
 

b. Council expressed concern about impacts to utility tax revenues from advances in energy 
efficiencies.  Staff will monitor this issue. 

 
 
6. The City’s Role in Youth Athletics: 
 

a. Council members unanimously agreed that the City should begin to fund and manage youth 
athletics programs.  This means the City will offer the programs currently offered by Covington 
Sports.  
 

b. Covington Sports will offer programming through spring 2014.  At that point the City will begin to 
take over the responsibility.  The Council agreed that funding for the first year will come from the 
fund balance, and beginning in the second year will come from the Parks Fund as part of the 
annual budgeting process.     

 
c. Council and the parks and recreation staff expect the City to “come out of the gate” offering the 

same quality programming as Covington Sports, and over time will continuously improve the 
quality.   
 

d. Council would like to see a kick-off event or jamboree. 

3 of 41



 3 

 
 
7. Design Guidelines:   
 

a. Council agreed that the City should strengthen its design standards for building façade 
modulation in Town Center.  The City’s interest is in providing clear and strong guidelines to the 
developers of private property in the Center.  Both Council and staff expect this work to be 
completed within the next four months. 
 

b. Council also agreed to begin to address requirements for improving the quality and design of 
streetlights, crosswalks, and other public amenities within the public right-of-way.  The Council 
agreed to begin that work by answering the five policy questions that Richard and Don posed in 
their memo for this summit (see page 55 of the summit packet/page 2 of the 17 January 2014 
memo).  Council also agreed to the suggestion that these questions be answered in the context 
of the Town Center and in a citywide context.  New standards for the public right-of-way are 
likely to be considered first in the context of Town Center.  Because it is a more complicated 
issue than the building façade modulation standards, the process of improving design standards 
for the public right-of-way will take more time.     

 
 
8. The Council’s Relationship with Advisory Committees:   

 
a. Members of City Commissions have recently requested that Council members attend their 

meetings to offer perspectives, opinions, and guidance.  At the summit the Council members 
unanimously agreed that it is in the City’s best interests for the Commissions to operate without 
Council involvement or influence so that their recommendations to the Council are based on 
their own discussions, analysis, and opinions.  The Council agreed that its members should not 
attend Commission or Advisory Committee meetings. 
 
The Council agreed that Derek and the management team should work with the City Attorney to 
draft language that could be incorporated into the “Covington City Council Rules of Procedure, 
Section 5:  City Advisory Committees.”  Once the language is drafted, the City Manager will 
submit it to the Council for consideration. 

 
b. The Council also agreed that language should be inserted into the Commission and Advisory 

Committee’s “Rules of Procedure” that defines removal procedures of each Commission (not 
only the Planning Commission).  Derek and the management team will work with the City 
Attorney to draft the language for the Council’s consideration.   
 

c. The members of the City Council agreed to not establish term limits for Commission or Advisory 
Committee members because the Council can exercise its right to not reappoint a member.   

 
d. The Council agreed to make a few changes to the questions asked of candidates for the 

Commissions, whether the candidates are seeking to be appointed initially or seeking 
reappointment.   
 
Currently there are seven questions asked of candidates for the Planning Commission, the 
Covington Economic Development Council, and the Parks and Recreation, Arts and Human 
Services Commission.  The Council agreed to add one more question for future interviews of 
people applying to serve on these Commissions or Committees.  “Part of the 
Commission’s/Committee’s role is to be an ambassador for the City of Covington.  How would 
you fulfill that role?”  
     

4 of 41



 4 

Currently there are seven questions asked of incumbent Commission members who are seeking 
reappointment.  The Council agreed to eliminate questions 2 and 7, and to add this question:  
“What do you recommend to improve the Commission’s work and operations?” 
 
 
  

MOST SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF 2013  
 
As in past years, the Council cited the most important accomplishments of the previous year.  By doing so, 
Council members provided the context and foundation for their goals and priorities during 2014.  The 
biggest accomplishments of 2013 were: 
 
1. Approving the hiring the temporary full-time parks staff person. 
2. Moving ahead with the Hawk property, which will provide a mix of housing and tax revenues. 
3. Building relationships with Maple Valley and Black Diamond through tri-city forums. 
4. The positive, proactive, cohesive City Council. 
5. Signing the contract with Republic Services for waste management.  
6. Opening Covington Community Park. 
7. The way the City has pursued higher educational institutions to partner with us and locate branches 

here.  
8. Establishment of the Transportation Benefit District (TBD), which reflected taking responsibility for 

the City’s finances. 
9. Opening of Valley Medical Center’s Urgent Care facility in Covington. 
10. The City taking over Covington Days—Karla’s role, which guaranteed success, the new sponsorship 

brochures, the new parade route. 
11. Implementing the Police Volunteer Program. 
12. Pursuing a single developer for Town Center and the Town Center Study. 
13. Funding social services in the City’s budget.   
14. Maintained our excellent staff. 
15. The Aquatics Center—we continue to exceed our business goals with the increasing attendance. 
16. Developers expressing interest and making inquiries about the City and Town Center that signal 

renewed economic development.  
17. The increasing interest of citizens in serving on the City’s Commissions and Advisory Committees. 
18. Our participation in regional forums has increased the City’s profile and made the Council well 

known. 
19. The renewed interest in SEATS. 
20. The City’s efforts on branding.  
21. Success in the State Legislature, for which we thank our crackerjack lobbying team. 
22. Excellent responses we’ve received from state legislators.      
23. As we emerge from the recession, we are beginning to see the benefit of tough and good decisions 

we made during it. 
24. Three Code amendments:  clearing/grading; SEPA thresholds; development agreement approach/tax 

exempt status. Each is making the City’s expectations and requirements of development clearer.  
25. We are the only city in Washington State whose bond rating went up!  
 
After citing the accomplishments of 2013, individual Council members mentioned these four items that 
were disappointing or need to be addressed in the near-term future. These items are: 
 
1. The City needs to find a predictable, sustainable source of funding for roads. 
2. The failure of the sales tax proposition at the ballot; it would have provided funding for 

transportation projects within the TBD. 

5 of 41



 5 

3. Lack of resolution of transportation issues, including funding, at all levels of government.  This makes 
it even more imperative that King County’s proposal for funding Metro pass when it comes before the 
voters.    

4. The City’s inability to annex the Northern Gateway property.  
 
 
 
 
FUTURE ISSUES ON THE CITY’S HORIZON  
 
Here are issues the Council members cited at the end of the summit that are likely to be on the Council’s 
agenda at sometime in the future: 
 
1. Additional revenue sources 
2. Transportation 
3. Design guidelines 
4. A public safety strategic plan 
5. A volunteer coordinator and volunteer program for special events    

6 of 41



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 25, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #30665-30719, Including Vendor ACH Payments, in the 
Amount of $165,344.96, Dated February 4, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002070725-
1002070735 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002070738-1002070738 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $152,252.12, Dated February 14, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #30665-30719, Including 
Vendor ACH Payments, in the Amount of $165,344.96, Dated February 4, 
2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002070725-1002070735 and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002070738-1002070738 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $152,252.12, Dated February 
14, 2014. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

7 of 41



8 of 41



9 of 41



10 of 41



11 of 41



12 of 41



13 of 41



14 of 41



15 of 41



16 of 41



17 of 41



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: February 25, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  RESOLUTION ADOPTING A VISION, MISSION, AND GOALS STATEMENT 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Draft resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, Executive Assistant/City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City Council agreed to modify its vision, mission, and goals statement at its strategic 
planning summit on January 25, 2014.  Like the prior statement, the new statement should be 
adopted by resolution. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Modify the resolution 
2. Do not adopt the resolution and provide direction to staff 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution          Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution repealing Resolution No. 13-01 and adopting a 
new vision, mission, and goals statement. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, City Attorney 
 

18 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 14-03  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 13-01 AND ADOPTING A 
NEW VISION, MISSION, AND GOALS STATEMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council previously adopted Resolution No. 13-01 adopting a 
vision, mission, and goals statement for the city; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council agreed to revise said vision, mission, and goals statement 
at its annual strategic planning summit on January 25, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to repeal Resolution No. 13-01 and adopt a new 

vision, mission, and goals statement; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 
Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Resolution No. 13-01 is hereby repealed. 
 

Section 2.  The City Council hereby adopts the vision, mission, and goals statement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
 PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of February, 2014.  
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                  MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

19 of 41



COVINGTONVision, Mission and Goals

VISION
Covington: Unmatched quality of life

MISSION

GOALS

Covington is a destination community where 
citizens, businesses and civic leaders collaborate 
to preserve and foster a strong sense of unity.

CITY OF

Economic Development:  Encourage and support a business community that is 
committed to Covington for the long-term and offers diverse products and services, 
family wage jobs, and a healthy tax base to support public services.

Town Center:  Establish Covington Town Center as a vibrant residential, commercial, 
educational, social, and cultural gathering place that is safe, pedestrian-friendly, 
well-designed, and well-maintained.

Youth and Families: Provide city services, programs and facilities such as parks and 
recreation and human services that emphasize and meet the needs of Covington’s 
youth and families.

Neighborhoods:  Foster community cohesiveness, communications, and cooperation, 
and maintain neighborhoods that offer a variety of housing options that are diverse, safe, 
accessible, and well-designed.

Municipal Services:  Plan, develop, implement, and maintain high quality capital 
infrastructure and services that reflect the needs of a growing community.

Customer Service:  Recruit, support, and retain a professional team of employees, 
volunteers, and stakeholders who offer outstanding customer service, ensure 
stewardship of the public’s money, and promote the City.

RESOLUTION 14-03 
EXHIBIT A

20 of 41



Consent Agenda Item C-4   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL RULES TO RESTRICT 

COUNCILMEMBERS FROM ATTENDING MEETINGS OF THE CITY’S 
ADVISORY BODIES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution amending the City Council Rules of Procedure 
2. November 26, 2013 Blue Sheet for Discussion of City Council Policy Regarding 
Attendance at Commission Meetings  

 
PREPARED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the regular council meeting on November 26, 2013, the council discussed whether there was a 
desire to adopt a policy to restrict council member attendance at the city’s commission meetings. 
The council decided by consensus not to adopt a formal policy at that time.  
 
The council re-engaged discussion on the matter at the city council summit on January 25, 2014. 
Consensus of the council was that they should adopt a formal rule to prohibit council members 
from attending meetings of the city’s advisory bodies in an official capacity to avoid undue 
influence of the council on those bodies. The council should note that though the council may 
restrict council members’ attendance in an official capacity, council members have a legal right 
to attend meetings as a private citizen. However, the council may establish a policy for how 
council members must distinguish their official and unofficial activities.  
 
The attached resolution (Attachment 1) contains the proposed addition to Section 5. CITY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES the Covington City Council Rules of Procedure to adopt such a 
rule.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Discussed November 26, 2013, and included in the Blue Sheet attached as 
Attachment 2.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution          Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt a resolution amending the City Council Rules of Procedure 
to restrict council member attendance at meetings of the city’s advisory 
bodies. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Attorney; Finance Director 

21 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 14-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING THE COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL RULES 
OF PROCEDURE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Covington City Council previously passed Resolutions 02-52, 03-136, 
06-25, 08-08, 09-06, 10-05, and 13-05 amending its Rules of Procedure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city council deems it necessary to amend said Rules of Procedure to 
address council member attendance at meetings of the city’s advisory bodies;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, 
King County, Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Covington City Council Rules of Procedure are hereby amended to 
include a new paragraph “E” to Section 5. CITY ADVISORY COMMITTEES as follows: 
 

E.  Council Relations with Advisory Bodies. 
 
To avoid any undue influence on the city’s advisory bodies, and to 
prevent unauthorized or misrepresented communications between 
the council and advisory bodies, council members are prohibited 
from attending any meeting of the city’s advisory bodies in an 
official capacity unless specifically authorized to attend by a 
consensus of the city council. Further, council members are 
strongly encouraged not to attend any meeting of the city’s 
advisory bodies in an unofficial capacity. If a council member 
chooses to attend a meeting of any of the city’s advisory bodies in 
an unofficial capacity, he/she shall expressly state that he/she is 
attending and/or speaking in a personal capacity only and is in no 
way representing the opinions or position of the city council.  

 
 PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of February, 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                  MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

22 of 41



Agenda Item X 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 26, 2013 

 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION OF CITY COUNCIL POLICY REGARDING ATTENDANCE AT 

COMMISSION MEETINGS.    
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
NA 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
 
A. Background 

 
At a previous city council meeting, council expressed a desire to discuss the council’s policy 
regarding councilmember attendance at commission meetings, either in an official or unofficial 
capacity. Council raised the issue based on the perceived need for a consistent policy regarding 
councilmember attendance at commissions meetings, as well as a need to refresh 
councilmembers’ knowledge on legal and policy considerations regarding councilmember 
attendance at commission meetings.  
 
The Covington City Council Rules of Procedure (ROP) currently do not address this issue. 
 
B. Legal and Policy Considerations 
 
The following are general legal and policy considerations for the council to weigh when 
discussing a potential policy regarding councilmember attendance at commission meetings. Of 
course, council is not limited to only these considerations when contemplating the adoption of a 
policy on this matter. 
 

1. Appearance of Fairness Doctrine 
 
Councilmember participation in, and discussion of, a quasi-judicial matter outside of the formal 
consideration of the matter by the council as a decision-making body should be carefully 
contemplated and ultimately avoided when possible. The doctrine is specifically applicable to 
councilmember interactions with the planning commission, which can and does consider quasi-
judicial matters.  
 
RCW 42.36.010 identifies quasi-judicial actions as “...those actions of the legislative body, 
planning commission, hearing examiner, … or boards that determine the legal rights, duties or 
privileges of specific parties in a hearing or other contested case proceeding.” The following 
types of land use matters have been determined by the courts to be quasi-judicial if a public 

ATTACHMENT 2

23 of 41



Page 2 of 4 
 

hearing must be held: subdivisions, preliminary plat approvals, conditional use permits, SEPA 
appeals, rezones of specific parcels of property, variances, PUD approval and other types of 
discretionary zoning permits. 
 
The appearance of fairness doctrine was developed as a method to assure that due process 
protections, normally applied in court proceedings, extend to certain administrative decision-
making hearings—that the council’s or planning commission’s quasi-judicial actions are fair and 
unbiased in both appearance and fact. The courts have identified three major categories of bias 
that may serve as grounds for the disqualification of decision-makers who perform quasi-judicial 
functions: personal interest, prejudgment of issues, and partiality.  
 
Councilmember participation at certain planning commission meetings could raise questions of 
bias based on prejudgment and/or impartiality. Decision-makers of quasi-judicial matters are 
expected to reserve judgment and not pre-judge an issue before the official testimony is 
presented. Impartiality in a proceeding may be undermined by a decision-maker’s prejudgment 
of a pending quasi-judicial matter before the council. Accordingly, a councilmember’s 
attendance and expression of opinions at a planning commission meeting when a quasi-judicial 
matter is being considered (and where the commission is in a position to make an advisory 
recommendation to the council) could rise to an appearance of fairness violation. The courts are 
so sensitive to the importance of this doctrine that merely showing an interest that might 
influence a member of the commission is sufficient enough to rise to an appearance of fairness 
violation—the interest does not have to actually affect the commissioner.  
 
Even though RCW 42.36.070 states that a decision-maker who participated in earlier 
proceedings on the same matter that resulted in an advisory recommendation is not automatically 
disqualified from participating in the subsequent quasi-judicial proceedings, such participation 
could potentially affect the applicant's right to a fair hearing and provided a basis to challenge the 
council’s decision on the matter.  
 
If a councilmember does discuss a pending quasi-judicial matter outside of the administrative 
hearing process, the councilmember should place the substance of the written or oral 
communication on the record, make a public announcement of the content of the communication, 
and allow the public an opportunity to rebut the substance of the communication. This will not 
guarantee that the council’s decision will not be challenged based upon the appearance of 
fairness doctrine; however, it is the best practice that courts have identified to attempt to cure a 
possible doctrine violation. 
 
Given all of the above, the generally recommended policy is for councilmembers, at a minimum, 
to not attend planning commission hearings on quasi-judicial matters because of the possible 
appearance of fairness challenge of the council’s final decision. A more conservative policy 
would prohibit councilmembers from attending any planning commission meetings, other than 
normally scheduled study sessions between the council and commission.  
 
 
 
 

24 of 41



Page 3 of 4 
 

2. Councilmember Conduct Responsibilities 
 
Councilmembers have the constitutional right to express their personal opinions on a topic and, 
in their personal time, attend any activities or events, including public meetings. However, 
whenever speaking publically outside of a council meeting, or attending activities or events, 
councilmembers must carefully distinguish between his/her personal opinion and the council’s 
policy or majority position, when applicable. This responsibility should not be used to unduly 
prohibit councilmembers from speaking publically or attending activities or events of their 
choosing. Rather, this responsibility should govern councilmembers’ mindfulness of their speech 
and actions in an official and unofficial capacity to avoid any undue influence or 
misrepresentation of the council’s policies or majority opinions.  
 
The rules of numerous other city councils contain provisions addressing councilmember conduct 
responsibilities in an official and unofficial capacity. Though such provisions do not expressly 
address councilmember attendance at commission meetings, the provisions are of a sufficiently 
general nature to govern all councilmember conduct outside of council meetings, including 
attendance at a public commission meeting. 
 

3. Council / Commission Engagement 
 

A final consideration when discussing a council policy regarding attendance of councilmembers 
at commission meetings relates to the council’s desired form of engagement and interaction with 
the city’s commissions. Unlike the prior two considerations, this consideration relates to softer 
factors regarding how the council wishes to engage and communicate with the city’s 
commissions (i.e. if current communication channels between the council and the commissions 
are adequate; if a councilmember’s appearance at a commission meeting is desired by a 
commission or inhibits the business of the commission, etc.). Council may collectively weigh the 
merits and relative priority of these considerations as part of the larger policy discussion. 
 
C. Policy Options 

 
The policy options for council to explore regarding this issue are many. Given the above 
considerations, potential policy options to consider include (but are not limited to): 
 

1. Maintain the status quo of no formal or informal policy regarding councilmember 
attendance at commission meetings. 
 

2. Adopt an informal policy amongst councilmembers regarding councilmember attendance 
at commission meetings and/or councilmember responsibilities regarding public speaking 
and actions in an official and unofficial capacity. 

 
3. Adopt a formal policy on councilmember responsibilities regarding public speaking and 

actions in an official and unofficial capacity. Such policy could include the following: 
 

• Councilmembers have the right to express their personal opinions on a topic; 
provided, however, that whenever doing so outside of a council meeting, the 

25 of 41



Page 4 of 4 
 

councilmember must carefully distinguish between his or her opinion and the 
council’s policy or majority position, when such difference exists. 

• Councilmembers, when expressing personal opinions or positions, should be 
careful to avoid undue influence of commissions and advisory boards.  

 
4. Adopt a formal policy that allows councilmember attendance at commission meetings, 

with conditions. Such policy could include all or portions of the following: 
 

• In general, individual councilmembers may attend commission meetings to 
observe the commission’s discussion and action and should refrain from any  
comments or actions intended to influence the commission. 

• If a commission chair requests the presence of a councilmember at a  
Commission meeting, the councilmember shall inform the full council of the  
request.  

• If requested by the commission to express an opinion on an issue being discussed 
by the commission, the councilmember shall make it clear that the opinion they 
express is their own and should not be construed as reflecting the opinions of 
other councilmembers or of the full council. 

 
5. Adopt a formal policy either strongly discouraging or prohibiting councilmember 

attendance at either certain commission meetings or all commission meetings generally.  
 

• A complete restriction on councilmember attendance at all commission meetings 
is the most severe position that may be adopted and as such, is generally not 
recommended.  

• Rather, a policy either restricting councilmember attendance only at certain 
commission meetings (e.g. planning commission meetings with a quasi-judicial 
matter on the agenda), or strongly discouraging attendance (short of an actual 
prohibition), would be preferred.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Provide additional direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     _   Motion     X_   Other 

 
Discussion item only. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager  

26 of 41



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: February 25, 2014 

 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON EXTENDING THE 

MORATORIUM ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA PRODUCTION AND 
PROCESSING FACILITIES, DISPENSARIES, AND COLLECTIVE GARDENS 
FOR SIX MONTHS 

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed ordinance extending said moratorium for an additional six months. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is to hold a public hearing to allow public testimony and 
take action extending the moratorium on medical marijuana production and processing facilities, 
dispensaries, and collective gardens for an additional six months.  
 
In August 2011, the city council established a twelve-month moratorium on the establishment, 
location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, 
production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens. That moratorium was extended 
for an additional six months in August 2012, February 2013, and most recently in August 2013. 
This proposed ordinance would further extend the moratorium for an additional six months, until 
August 2014, unless earlier terminated.   
 
As previously briefed to council last fall, the state Liquor Control Board and the state legislature 
are in the process of developing a new regulatory framework for medical marijuana, which will 
most likely be substantially similar to the recently adopted state regulations for recreational 
marijuana. Given the activity of the legislature on this issue, it is highly likely that new medical 
marijuana regulations will be adopted during this current legislative session. 
 
Given the near certainty of change to the state medical marijuana regulatory landscape, staff 
recommends for the city to maintain its current moratorium on medical marijuana facilities and 
collective gardens until such new regulations are adopted by the state legislature.  
 
City staff will continue to monitor the evolving legal and regulatory framework concerning 
medical marijuana, including litigation undertaken by neighboring jurisdictions regarding the 
approval of business licenses for medical marijuana-based businesses. 
 
The moratorium may be terminated prior to the end of the six-month term should the city adopt 
interim medical marijuana-related zoning regulations. 
 

27 of 41



ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Do not adopt a moratorium. 
2. Provide alternate direction to staff. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution         Motion         Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt an ordinance to extend the moratorium on medical 
marijuana collective gardens, production and processing facilities, 
dispensaries, and related businesses for six-months.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director  

28 of 41



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 05-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO EXTEND THE 
MORATORIUM ON THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, 
OPERATION, LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR 
CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION FACILITIES, PROCESSING 
FACILITIES, COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND RELATED 
BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON FOR SIX 
MONTHS; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
MORATORIUM; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT 
SUPPORTING THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE NOs. 08-11, 12-12, 01-13, and 07-13; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 9, 2011, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 08-

11, which declared an emergency necessitating the immediate imposition of a moratorium on the 
establishment, location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana 
dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens, as more 
particularly described in Ordinance No. 08-11; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 24, 2012, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 12-12, 

which provided for a six-month extension of the moratorium on the establishment, location, 
operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production 
facilities, processing facilities, collective gardens, or any business or organization offering any 
type of service relating to collective gardens or to producing, processing, or dispensing medical 
marijuana; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 8, 2013, and August 27, 2013, the Covington City Council 

passed Ordinance Nos. 01-13 and 07-13, respectively, which provided for additional six-month 
extension of said moratorium; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 69.51A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), creates an 

affirmative defense for qualifying patients to the charge of possession of marijuana, and provides 
that such patients can, as an alternative to growing marijuana for their own use, designate a 
designated provider who can provide medical marijuana to only one patient at a time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health has opined that “the law 
[current Chapter 69.51A RCW] does not allow dispensaries” and that it is “not legal to buy or 
sell marijuana,” but the Department of Health has left enforcement of the law to local officials; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, state law also allows, under certain conditions, collective gardens and 
provides the city the authority to adopt zoning, health and safety, and taxing  regulations relating 
to collective gardens; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

29 of 41



 
 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Attorneys for Washington State have reiterated that marijuana 

possession, production, and distribution is a federal criminal offense and that local officials and 
employees would not be immune to prosecution under the federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 
U.S.C.§801 et seq., even if state law decriminalized the use, possession, and production of 
marijuana for medical purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, though state law allows medical marijuana collective gardens, the City of 

Covington currently has no licensing, zoning, or land use requirements that address collective 
gardens for medical marijuana production or that address medical marijuana production, 
processing, or dispensing facilities, should such dispensaries be determined to be authorized; and 

 
WHEREAS, unregulated collective gardens are anticipated to have negative secondary 

impacts including a possible increase of criminal activity in the area of collective gardens, a 
possible increase in illegal drug activity in the area of the collective gardens, possible illegal 
distribution of medical marijuana, and may present health and safety concerns related to the 
handling of chemicals used in the growing and processing of marijuana, the ventilation of 
collective gardens and related air quality issues, and the electrical wiring of collective garden 
facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Covington City Council established a moratorium to prevent the location 

and vesting of any medical marijuana collective gardens or medical marijuana production, 
processing, or dispensing facilities within the city while the city lacks the necessary tools to 
ensure regulation of the negative secondary impacts and health and safety concerns and to 
maintain the status quo while legal, political, and policy and city code impacts are studied and 
considered; and 

 
WHEREAS, given the continuing uncertainty of the legal status and regulations 

governing medical marijuana production facilities, processing facilities, and dispensaries under 
the current state law, and given the possibility of several pending actions that could clarify the 
conflict between state and federal law, including John and Jane Does 1-13 v. City of Seattle, 
King County Cause No. 11-2-42621-SEA regarding Seattle’s regulation of collective gardens; 
and Cannabis Action Coalition, et.al. v. City of Kent, King Count Cause No. 12-2-19726-1-KNT 
regarding Kent’s prohibition of collective gardens; the city requires additional time for continued 
thorough legal review of the complicated legal framework that currently exists and is still 
evolving; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city must extend the moratorium on the establishment, location, 

licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, 
processing facilities, collective gardens, and related businesses for six months, to act as a stop-
gap measure to provide an opportunity for the state to adopt new medical marijuana regulations 
and for legal clarification of the city’s ability to regulate the siting and activities of collective 
gardens and medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, and 
related businesses if deemed legal, and to avoid the unregulated establishment of collective 
gardens within the city with rights contrary to and inconsistent with any revision the city may 
make to its regulatory scheme as a result of the city’s continued consideration of this matter; and  

30 of 41



 
 

 
WHEREAS, on February 25, 2014, the city council held a public hearing on the 

moratorium as required by RCW 35A.63.220, and on that date accepted testimony from all 
members of the public desiring to be heard on the subject; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon the public testimony received on February 25, 2014, and based 

upon additional materials presented by city staff, a moratorium of limited duration is in the 
public interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 25, 2014, the city council considered the foregoing facts, 

materials, and testimony, and deliberated on the issue of whether to continue the moratorium; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 authorizes the city council to adopt land use moratoria; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 25, 2014, the city’s SEPA Responsible Official determined that 

the moratorium is exempt from SEPA under RCW 43.21.030(2)(c); 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Adoption of Defined Terms. For the purpose of this ordinance, the definitions 
of “Medical marijuana dispensary”, “Medical marijuana processing facility”, “Medical 
marijuana production facility”, and “Medical marijuana collective garden” in Ordinance No. 08-
11 are hereby adopted by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Findings of Fact. In accordance with RCW 35A.63.220, which requires the 

city council to adopt findings of fact justifying the adoption of moratoria, the “WHEREAS” 
clauses set forth above are hereby adopted as the city council’s findings of fact in support of the 
moratorium imposed by this ordinance and are by this reference incorporated herein as if set 
forth in their entirety.  

 
Section 3. Moratorium Expiration. This six-month moratorium shall expire six-months 

after the Effective Date, unless earlier terminated.  
 

Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 5. Corrections. Upon the approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk is 

authorized to make any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the 
correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection 
numbers, and any reference thereto.  

31 of 41



 
 

 
 
Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the city and shall take full force and effect five days after the date of publication 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 25th day of February, 2014.  
 

      

Mayor Margaret Harto 

 

PUBLISHED:   

EFFECTIVE:    

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

32 of 41



 Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 25, 2014 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER A RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE AQUATICS 

CENTER REROOFING PROJECT. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Engineer’s Bid Tabulation Summary 
2. Proposed Resolution Rejecting All Bids 
 
PREPARED BY: Fred French, Project Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The city requested bids from all roofing contractors on the Municipal Research and Services 
(MRSC) Small Works Roster on December 27, 2013.  Eighteen (18) companies requested bid 
specifications and plans.  We received bids from six (6) companies.  City staff has reviewed each 
bid proposal and all are significantly higher than the engineer’s estimate of $65,000.  The lowest 
bid proposal was submitted by Meyer Brothers Roofing for $104,053.  The Bid Tabulation 
Summary is attached. (Attachment 1) 
 
Given that all bid proposals for the project were higher than the engineer’s estimate and the 
additional funds for the reroof would impact our ability to construct the rental room within the 
available budget, staff is recommending that the council pass the attached resolution rejecting all 
reroofing bids.  
 
Upon rejection of all bids, city staff requests authorization to move forward with the reroof 
project by re-advertising for reroofing bids based on revised specifications.   
 
Staff will provide a verbal report on the other aspects of the aquatic center renovation project and 
possible next steps. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Reject all bids and choose not to proceed with the aquatic center roofing project.  

Terminating the project will require the city to decline the state grant funds and repay that 
portion of the grant used to date for project development. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Aquatic Center project is funded by a Washington State Department of Commerce grant of 
$388,000.  The grant eligible project costs to date are approximately $29,123 all of which has 
been reimbursed by the grant.  If council chooses to terminate the project, city funds will be 
needed to repay the state for grant funds that have already been reimbursed.   
 
 

33 of 41



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance      X     Resolution           Motion        Other 
  

Council member _____________ moves, Council member______________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution rejecting all bids for the Aquatics Center 
Reroofing Project and to modify the project specifications for re-
advertisement.   
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

34 of 41



AQUATICS CENTER REROOF

Small Works Format

Bidder BID

Meyer Brothers Roofing Inc 104,054.00$                  

Nations Roof Northwest 104,896.00$                  

Wayne's Roofing, Inc. 105,900.00$                  

Lloyd A Lynch General Contractor, Inc. 106,747.28$                  

Rainshield Roofing & Const 126,030.00$                  

Madsen Roofing, Inc. 137,579.00$                  

ATTACHMENT 1

35 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 14-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR 
THE AQUATICS CENTER REROOFING PROJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS, on December 27, 2013 the City of Covington requested bids for the 
Aquatic Center Reroofing Project (“Project”) based on the engineer’s estimated budget of 
$65,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City properly advertised and requested bids for the Project and six (6) 
bid proposals were received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all timely bid proposals have been evaluated and all bids exceed the 
engineer’s estimate and available project funding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to reject all bids and reevaluate the 
specifications of the Aquatic Center Reroofing Project; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Covington, Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby rejects all bids submitted for the Aquatics 
Center Renovation Project.  
  
 Passed by the City Council on this 25th day of February, 2014. 
 
             

Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
        
Attested: 
 
 
       
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Sara Springer, City Attorney  
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

36 of 41



Agenda Item 3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 25, 2014 
  
SUBJECT:   APPROVE CITY MANAGER MERIT GOALS FOR 2014. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 
 
ATTACHMENT (S):   

1. Derek Matheson’s Memo to Noreen Beaufrere for the City Council, “City 
Manager 2014 Merit Goals,” dated February 14, 2014 
 

PREPARED BY:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager  
 
EXPLANATION:    
Compensation Program Procedure No. HR-16.1 is a comprehensive procedure documenting 
the processes the city uses to compensate its employees.  It was included in Revision 3 of 
the city’s Employee Handbook that was adopted by the city council on September 11, 2012 
per Resolution No. 12-09.  One of those processes outlined in the procedure is a Merit 
Award Program that issues individual employee merit awards in the form of merit floating 
holiday hours based on the employee’s percent of achievement of pre-established annual 
merit goals.   
 
Attachment 1 is City Manager Derek Matheson’s eleven (11) 2014 merit goals proposed for 
the city council’s consideration.  The council needs to choose three of those goals to 
become the city manager’s pre-established goals for 2014.  The goals do not need to be 
prioritized or weighted.  The percent of achievement of these pre-established goals will be 
determined during the city manager’s 2014 employee evaluation process at the beginning of 
2015. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Alter the proposed 2014 Merit Award Goals for the city manager. 
2. Choose different 2014 Merit Award Goals for the city manager. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Fiscal impact will occur at termination only if the city manager has an outstanding 
allowable balance of merit award hours which, according to city procedure, cannot exceed 
64 hours. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance   ____ Resolution      X   Motion            Other  
 

Councilmember ___________ moves and Councilmember  
________________ seconds, to approve the 2014 Merit Goals for the 
City Manager. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 

 

37 of 41



Covington: unmatched quality of life 

 

Memo 
To: Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 

For: City Council 

From: Derek Matheson, City Manager 

Date: 2/14/14 

Re: City Manager 2014 Merit Goals 

The City Council needs to establish three 2014 city manager merit goals.  The following 

options are drawn from discussions at your 1/25/14 summit as well as ongoing projects.  I 

am happy to develop more options at your request: 

 

1. Help the council adopt a strategy to direct General Fund fund balance to capital projects. 

2. Help the council adopt new design standards for private development and public 

capital improvement projects. 

3. Help the council and/or Transportation Benefit District Board craft a ballot measure 

and provide objective information to the community. 

4. Help the council appoint the Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee 

(PRePAC).1 

5. Implement a school resource officer program. 

6. Implement a youth sports program. 

7. Lobby the legislature for state funding for State Route 516, a higher-education needs 

assessment, and park safety and ADA renovations. 

8. Negotiate and help the council adopt a development agreement for the Hawk 

Property. 

                                                      
1 This item is currently on hold due to other high priorities with imminent deadlines, including Aquatic Center 

renovation, creating a youth athletics program, and applying for grants for Covington Community Park Phase 2, as 

well as ongoing projects, including the parks capital improvement program and park impact fee. 

ATTACHMENT 1

38 of 41

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text

nbeaufrere
Typewritten Text



 Page 2 
 

9. Negotiate and help the council adopt a development agreement for the Inland Group 

project. 

10.   Pursue creative public-private partnership opportunities for the Town Center in 

  conjunction with the city’s Town Center development partner. 

11.   Seek funding for and continue to design Covington Community Park Phase 2. 

Since I am the council’s only employee, the goals you select should reflect your priorities for 

the organization as a whole rather than your priorities for me personally. 

39 of 41



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: February 25, 2014  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

Tuesday, March 11, 2014 Special & Regular Meeting 
 
 

 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40 of 41



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, March 11, 2014                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services Commission applicants beginning at 5:20 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
• Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2014 (Ed White) 
• Recognition of Finance Staff for CAFR (Council) 
• Recognize Citizen for Lifesaving Action (Bri Webb) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 11, 2014 Study Session; February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting; February 

25, 2014 Study Session; and February 25, 2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Contract with SBS Legal Services for City Attorney Services (Matheson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission (Council)  
2. Authorize Fund Transfer and Approve Use of Funds for Covington Days Staffing (Matheson) 
3. Approve School Resource Officer Agreement (Klason) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

Draft  

as of 
02/20/2014 

 

41 of 41

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	02-25-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, February 25, 2014                                                                       City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Agenda C-1 Green Sheet 02-25-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	01.25.2014 Draft Annual Strategic Planning Summit Summary
	Consent Agenda C-2 Green Sheet 02-25-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Agenda C-2 Attachments
	Consent Agenda C-3 Green Sheet 02-25-14 Blue Sheet Vision Mission Goals
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent Agenda C-3 Attachment 1 Resolution
	Consent Agenda C-3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A GoalsPoster8.5x11v2014
	Consent Agenda C-4 Green Sheet 02-25-14 Blue Sheet Council Rules_SBS Edit
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent Agenda C-4 Attachment 1 Resolution_02_25_14_SBS Edit
	Consent Agenda C-4 Attachment 2 Blue Sheet_Discussion of Commission Mtg Attendance Policy_11_26_13
	Item 1 Blue Sheet Extending Moratorium on Medical Marijuana_2_25_14_SBS Edit
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ordinance for 4th Six-Month Extension of Med Marijuana Moratorium_2_25_14_SBS Edit
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 02-25-14  Blue Sheet  City Manager Merit Goals for 2014
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 ATTACH 1 - Proposed Merit Goals 2014
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	03-11-2014 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Tuesday, March 11, 2014                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	 Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn
	 Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2014 (Patterson)
	 Recognition of Finance Staff for CAFR (Council)
	 Recognize Citizen for Lifesaving Action (Bri Webb)

	Item 2 Attachment 1, Roofing Bid Tab.pdf
	BID Tab




